
MEMORANDUM 

600 Stewart Street, Suite 1700, Seattle, WA  98101, TELEPHONE:  (206) 728-2674, FAX:  (206) 728-2732 www.geoengineers.com 

TO: Marian Abbett, Washington Department of Ecology 

FROM: Rob Leet 

DATE: September 21, 2012 

FILE: 0137-018-03-0510-02 

SUBJECT: Additional Permits and Approvals Determination for 
Interim Action Performed in Conjunction with City of Port Angeles CSO Upgrade Project 
Port Angeles Rayonier Mill Site, Port Angeles, Washington 

This memorandum, submitted on behalf of Rayonier Inc. (Rayonier), summarizes GeoEngineers’ conclusions 
regarding additional permits and approvals for Rayonier’s implementation of the Final Materials Management Plan, 
City of Port Angeles CSO Construction Project, Port Angeles Rayonier Mill Site (MMP; GeoEngineers, July 17, 2012).  
As described in the MMP, Rayonier is conducting an interim cleanup action in conjunction with the City of Port 
Angeles’ (City’s) Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) Phase 1 Upgrade Project.  The interim action consists primarily of 
consolidating and stockpiling soil and other materials excavated by the City on the former Rayonier Mill property 
during trenching for the City’s new CSO pipeline.  Some of the excavated soil is expected to be contaminated as a 
result of the former mill operations.  The excavation and consolidation of this soil in managed stockpiles on the 
Rayonier-owned portion of the former mill property will reduce potential risks associated with contaminants that 
may be present in the soil.  The interim action will also obviate the need to potentially disturb the CSO pipeline 
during future anticipated cleanup actions on the mill property.  Details of the planned interim action are provided in 
the MMP. 

Section 7.0 of the MMP lists permits and approvals that the City has obtained or applied for in preparation for the 
CSO construction project.  Section 7.0 also states: 

“…Rayonier is responsible for obtaining any additional permits and approvals for its implementation of 
the MMP, or for complying with the substantive requirements of any permits or approvals covered by 
the procedural exemption of Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 70.105D.090(1).  Rayonier will 
determine these additional requirements and inform Ecology of them in a separate submittal.” 

We reviewed potentially relevant agency requirements to assess their applicability to Rayonier’s implementation of 
the MMP.  Two potential requirements were identified: 

 Federal Clean Water Act National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit and State 
Construction Stormwater General Permit.  The former mill site is currently covered under Industrial 
Stormwater General Permit #WAR003611 and has an approved stormwater pollution prevention plan 
(SWPPP).  Recent updates to the SWPPP (included in Appendix C of the MMP) describe the planned 
locations of the stockpiles to be generated by the CSO excavation activities and the associated Best 
Management Practices for preventing stormwater impacts.  The City has obtained an individual 
stormwater permit for the CSO Phase I project construction.  The Department of Ecology has 
determined that Rayonier does not need to obtain a separate permit for its activities related to the 
accompanying interim action. 

 Port Angeles Municipal Code (PAMC).  Excavation, grading, clearing, paving, and construction are 
regulated by the City.  The City Clearing, Grading, Filling, and Drainage Regulations (PAMC Chapter 
15.28) identify a number of standards and requirements for obtaining a Clearing and Grading Permit.  
The City approved a Clearing and Grading Permit exemption for Rayonier’s construction and 
management of the stockpile staging areas and stockpiled materials on August 21, 2012 (see 
attached email with annotated permit application from Kathryn Neal, City of Port Angeles to Warren 
Snyder, Rayonier and Chip Halbert, Landau Associates).  Shoreline setback requirements are also 
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regulated by the City through PAMC Chapter 15.08, which adopts the Shoreline Management Act 
provisions of RCW 98.58.020.  Setbacks are shown on SWPPP Figure 3.  The current version of 
SWPPP Figure 3 is attached (note: this replaces the version included in Appendix C of the MMP). 

Based on our review of potentially relevant requirements and the information presented above, we conclude that 
there are no additional permits, approvals, or substantive requirements applicable to the interim action described 
in the MMP.  Please contact me at (206) 239-3230 or rleet@geoengineers.com should you have any questions. 

 

Attachments: 

1. Documentation of Clearing and Grading Permit exemption (emails exchanged between City of Port Angeles, 
Rayonier, and Landau Associates) and annotated permit application. 

2. SWPPP Figure 3 (7/31/2012). 
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Rob Leet

Subject: FW: Rayonier C&G Application
Attachments: Completed Application.pdf

From: Kathryn Neal [mailto:Kneal@cityofpa.us]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 21, 2012 9:09 AM 
To: Warren Snyder; Chip Halbert 
Cc: James Burke; Parker, Keith 
Subject: FW: Rayonier C&G Application 
 
 
 
Kathryn  
 

From: Eric Walrath  
Sent: Tuesday, August 21, 2012 8:21 AM 
To: Kathryn Neal 
Cc: James Burke 
Subject: Rayonier C&G Application 
 

Activity is exempt as noted on application. 
 
Eric C. Walrath 
Engineering Projects Supervisor 
City of Port Angeles 
Tel:  360.417.4806 
Fax:  360.417.4709 
TTY:  360.417.4645 
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Rob Leet

Subject: FW: Clearing and Grading Permit Application - CSO Project Stockpile Areas

From: Chip Halbert  
Sent: Thursday, August 09, 2012 11:41 AM 
To: Kathryn Neal; Eric Walrath 
Cc: James Burke; Warren Snyder 
Subject: RE: Clearing and Grading Permit Application - CSO Project Stockpile Areas 
 
Kathryn and Eric, 
 
Please note the following correction to the permit application: clearing and grading for Stockpile Area 3 will occur within 
200 feet of Ennis Creek (incorrectly stated as “No” in the permit application), but outside the 100‐foot stream buffer 
under City Code 15.20.070. 
 
Thanks, 
Chip 
 
Charles (Chip) Halbert, P.E.  Senior Associate 
Landau Associates, Inc. 
601 Union Street, Suite 1606, Seattle, WA  98101 
206.631.8690  fax 206.631.8697  cell 206.696.6603 
chalbert@landauinc.com  www.landauinc.com 
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From: Kathryn Neal [mailto:Kneal@cityofpa.us]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 07, 2012 9:56 AM 
To: Eric Walrath 
Cc: Chip Halbert; James Burke; Warren Snyder 
Subject: FW: Clearing and Grading Permit Application - CSO Project Stockpile Areas 
 
Eric, 
I am forwarding Rayonier’s application for a Clearing and Grading Permit for the soil stockpile areas they will be 
managing at the former Rayonier Mill Site.  
 
The soil will be generated by trench and structure foundation excavation by the City of Port Angeles’ contractor as part 
of the CSO Phase 1 project. Under terms of our Purchase and Sale Agreement with Rayonier, Rayonier retains all 
environmental liability for the entire former mill site. Excavated soils from the project will be transferred to Rayonier for 
their management, characterization, and disposal under terms of Rayonier’s Agreed Order with Ecology. The work is 
fairly characterized in Rayonier’s application, but I would clarify that the work WILL NOT be under the direction of the 
City Engineer (potential exemption 6.02.2(3). It is controlled by other regulations (potential exemption 6.02(8). I am 
attaching a copy of the Materials Management Plan, and DOR Agreed Order by which it will be enforced. On the last 
page of the MMP is a sketch of a typical soil stockpile. 
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Kathryn Neal, P.E. 
(360)417-4821 
 
Engineering Manager 
City of Port Angeles 
 

From: Chip Halbert [mailto:CHalbert@landauinc.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 07, 2012 8:44 AM 
To: Kathryn Neal 
Cc: Warren Snyder; Brian Butler; Robert Ludwig 
Subject: Clearing and Grading Permit Application - CSO Project Stockpile Areas 
 
Kathryn, 
 
Please find attached a copy of our clearing and grading permit application for the three stockpile areas on Rayonier 
property to support the City’s CSO project.  Per our discussions, we understand that Rayonier’s activities to stage and 
maintain the stockpile areas qualify for an exemption from the City’s clearing and grading permit requirement; however, 
the City Engineer must make the final determination regarding exemptions.   
 
Our understanding of conditions warranting the permit exemption is presented in the attached application.  As we 
anticipate a permit exemption, we have not prepared a SEPA checklist to accompany this application.  We know that 
time is of the essence in readying the stockpile areas to accept materials from the City’s CSO project, and look forward 
to working through the permitting process quickly. 
 
Regards, 
Chip 
 
Charles (Chip) Halbert, P.E.  Senior Associate 
Landau Associates, Inc. 
601 Union Street, Suite 1606, Seattle, WA  98101 
206.631.8690  fax 206.631.8697  cell 206.696.6603 
chalbert@landauinc.com  www.landauinc.com 
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